
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

AGENDA: 

1. CALL TO ORDER; PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

2. ROLL CALL 

3. CHANGES TO AGENDA 

4. PUBLIC COMMENT (3 minute limit) 

5. APPROVAL OF BOARD MEETING MINUTES 

6. OLD BUSINESS 

a. REPORT ON PERSONNEL COSTS 

b. LOWER COLUMBIA CONNECTOR (COSTS INVOLVED)  

c. SEASIDE KIOSK UPDATE 

d. IT SERVICES 

e. SDAO CONFERENCE  

f. BOARD RETREAT UPDATE 

7. NEW BUSINESS 

a. SUPPLEMENTAL BUDGET – RIDECARE 

8. PUBLIC HEARING – SUPPLEMENTAL BUDGET – GENERAL FUND/CAPITAL RESERVE FUND 

9. PUBLIC COMMENT 

10. OTHER ITEMS 

 

 

Sunset Empire Transportation District 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS  

BOARD MEETING AGENDA 

THURSDAY DECEMBER 18, 2018 

10:00 AM 

Astoria Transit Center, 900 Marine Drive Astoria, OR 

  1



 

1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER- Chair Kathy Kleczek called the meeting to order at 9:05 AM  

2. ROLL CALL: 

Present: Chair Kathy Kleczek, Vice Chair Bryan Kidder, Commissioner Kevin Widener, Commissioner Pamela 

Alegria, Commissioner Carol Gearin and Commissioner Tracy MacDonald. Secretary/Treasurer Lylla Gaebel was 

excused.    

 

Staff Present: Executive Director Jeff Hazen, Chief Operating Officer Paul Lewicki and Executive Assistant Mary 

Parker 

 

3. CHANGES TO AGENDA-Commissioner Gearin requested to add discussion about access to the proposed 

Seaside Grocery Outlet. This was placed under 9.e on the agenda. 

 

4. PUBLIC COMMENT- None 

 

5. APPROVAL of THE OCTOBER 25, 2018 BOARD MEETING MINUTES- 

Commissioner Kidder moved to approve the October 2018 Board Minutes 

Commissioner Gearin seconded the motion 

Discussion- Commissioner Gearin reported she had emailed corrections which had not been made to the 

draft minutes and Mary read for the record; add a comma after Commissioner Gearin’s name in roll call 

and remove the word “and”, on page 6 under #9, add an apostrophe “s” after county and move the word 

“closed” to follow Chair Kleczek’ s name in the sentence opening executive session.  

Motion passed unanimously 

 

6. REPORTS FROM CHAIR AND COMMISSIONERS 

a. Commissioner Alegria- None 

b. Commissioner Widener- Reported he wanted to comment on the accusations and comments made at the 

previous meeting regarding his outside political activities. Commissioner Widener said he had signed a 

card agreeing to give his name only to be used on the Tiffany Mitchel website, had never given 

permission for his title to be used as such on that website, had never been on that website and that his title 

has been used incorrectly and this is not the first time you have done this to me. As Board Chair you have 

responsibilities to treat everyone equally and fairly and you are not, and I think if the Board looks at the 

history, they know that. What I do outside of this is my business and this should have been addressed in a 

different manner and brought to my attention. It is not illegal for me to list my name on Tiffany’s website. 

Commissioner Widener said he has been staked out because of his history with Indivisible which Tiffany 

was the head of. Commissioner Widener said he has been active in housing, transportation and health care 

issues and won a door to door race. He said this was inappropriate and not the first time Chair Kleczek 

has done this to me. You have a beautiful habit of creating an illusion of a problem where none exists and 

you are pointing it towards me and I have no idea why. You do not like my visibility and you never have, 

and you have been slapping me for the last year. Commissioner Widener asked Chair Kleczek for an 

apology and that she step down as Board Chair immediately or that the Board fire her.  

 

c. Commissioner MacDonald- Reported that he had enjoyed the OTA Conference, the staff and the key note 

speakers did a great job and some subjects stretched his imagination a bit.     

d. Commissioner Gearin- Nothing to Report 

e. Commissioner Kidder- Reported that he enjoyed the OTA Conference and it was very pleasing to see that 

our District is doing a lot of the things, if not more than the other Districts.  

 
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

BOARD MEETING MINUTES 

November 29, 2018 

 
 

 

 

 

 

  2



 

2 

 

f. Chair Kleczek- Reported that she thought that it was a great conference, learned a lot and was able to 

share information she had learned at the next ACT meeting.   

  

7. FINANCIAL REPORTS- Executive Director Hazen reported that Financial Officer Tracy Lofstrom is on vacation 

so he would be reviewing the September Financials and Exceptions report. Executive Director Hazen said under 

4100 and 4300 the month needed to be changed from September to October. Executive Director Hazen verified 

that the billboard agreement was signed in 2011, is for 25 years and the sign company has a way out of the 

agreement, but SETD does not. Executive Director Hazen reported that Salaries and Wages is over budget by 

$36,000 for the month and $93,000 for the year. Vehicle Maintenance and repairs is over budget, but there is a 

grant that will fill the gap for this. Executive Director Hazen said that there will need to be a Supplemental Budget 

hearing scheduled. He will send out a doodle poll to the Board to set a date. Chair Kleczek asked that the $460 

expense for the email account be checked because it is the same amount that was being paid when RideCare was 

still operating. There was Board discussion about the Salaries and Wages being over budget since July 2018. The 

Board directed Executive Director Hazen to drop all other things to find out why and schedule a Board meeting in 

December to report information about what is found to the Board.   

 

Commissioner Gearin moved to approve the October financials as presented 

Commissioner Widener seconded the motion 

Discussion- None  

Motion passed unanimously  

 

8. OLD BUSINESS- 

a. Special Districts Insurance Services (SDIS) Best Practices 2018- Mary reported that SDIS insurance 

offers a discount on premiums each year through their Best Practices program. The program focuses on 

reducing loss and improving operations. This year’s requirements were focused on preventative 

maintenance. Mary said all requirements were met which will give the District a 14% discount on the 

annual liability insurance premium.  

b. Lower Columbia Connector 

 

Lower Columbia Connector – Paul Lewicki gave an update on Columbia County Rider reporting that they 

will be cancelling the Lower Columbia Connector Service to Portland on the weekends and plans on 

stopping this service in January. Paul said we are looking at how we can provide service to Portland 2 

times on Saturday and 2 times on Sunday. Staff is putting together a program to apply for a grant from the 

state to cover the cost of adding this service. Executive Director Hazen will check if service to Portland is 

considered a major service change and what public notification requirements would be. Chair Kleczek 

said without funding from Columbia County we are actually providing service 7 days a week, so we need 

to know if there is some sort of emergency funding available from the state. Following further discussion, 

the Board requested that Executive Director Hazen bring what total costs for extending the Columbia 

Connector would be to the December Board meeting.   

 

Chair Kleczek called a recess from 1025 to 1030 

 

c. Seaside Kiosk Update- Executive Director Hazen reported that he had received a call from the Seaside 

Health Foods store location saying they had rented the location to someone else and we are out of the 

Seaside outlet Mall location on December 31st. Other options suggested were a sight across from Safeway 

on the side of the building by Domino’s Pizza. Other options might be to do nothing and sell passes on 

the buses again. Executive Director Hazen said he had not heard back from the city of Seaside about the 

Visitors Center. Several other locations were suggested including sharing space with the Seaside Rotary 

at the mall, asking the Sunset Parks and Recreation to sell tickets and a storefront in a commercial triplex 

on North Holladay. 

 

d. Fare Language Update- Paul Lewicki said that riders, drivers and staff have had difficulty interpreting the 

Fare Schedule language including the updated Appendix A which was approved in June 2018. Paul said 

language is not clear as to where and how the passes can be used. Paul submitted changes to the Board for 

  3



 

3 

 

the Day Pass, Monthly Pass and the Student Summer Fun Pass. After discussion the final changes were 

applied and will be distributed to staff and drivers.  

 

Commissioner MacDonald moved to approve Appendix A as changed and that all passes, and 

single fare is good to go Clatskanie.  

Commissioner Widener seconded the motion  

Discussion- Day passes and monthly passes will be valid anywhere in Clatsop County and are 

valid to Clatskanie.  

Motion passed unanimously 

 

9. NEW BUSINESS 

 

a. Oregon Public Transportation Conference Reports- Executive Director Hazen said that he thought it was a 

great idea for those that attended to write a report and he hoped everyone enjoyed reading them as it 

showed the impact that the conference had on staff attending.  Executive Director Hazen said he thought 

it was one of the best he has ever been to and was very well organized.  

 

b. Transportation Advisory Committee Update- Executive Director Hazen reported that we had a very good 

first meeting yesterday and the Board should be very happy with who they have appointed and requested 

the Board appoint Diana Nino from the Lower Columbia Hispanic Council to the committee, who 

attended the meeting yesterday, asked great questions but did not vote. Diana is an OHP outreach person 

for the Lower Columbia Hispanic Council.  

Commissioner Widener moved to appoint Diana Nino to the Transportation Advisory 

Committee.  

Commissioner Gearin seconded the motion 

Discussion- Commissioner Kidder asked if Diana would be in position 6. Executive 

Director Hazen said that he had changed the original category list and Diana would be in 

the Limited English Proficiency category and she deals with low income. Commissioner 

Widener said he has met Diana and supports her being on the committee. Commissioner 

MacDonald also said he supports Diana being on the committee. Commissioner Gearin 

asked if Barbara Carson didn’t want to come back. Executive Director Hazen said that 

she never responded, and this is a new committee.  

Motion passed unanimously 

 

Executive Director Hazen asked for Board approval of the Transportation Advisory Committee Bylaws 

including the highlighted lines that were added to the original Bylaws and the spelling correction of the 

word “area” on page 4. Chair Kleczek requested that Barbara Carson be removed from the roster and that 

the word “and” be removed from position 8 description on page 10.  

Commissioner Gearin moved to adopt the Transportation Advisory Committee Bylaws as 

corrected. 

Commissioner Widener seconded the motion 

Discussion- None 

Motion passed unanimously 

 

c. Budget Committee Involvement with Supplemental Budgets- Executive Director Hazen reported that this 

came up at the last Board Meeting. Executive Director Hazen said he included Oregon Local Budget 

information in the Board Pack which says including the budget committee when adopting a supplemental 

budget is a local policy decision of the governing body. Executive Director Hazen advised that the Board 

would need to direct the Board Policy Committee to meet and write a policy to include the Budget 

Committee. Following Board discussion, it was recommended that the Supplemental Budget Meeting 

would be held and public announcements made according to Local Budget Law.  

 

  4



 

4 

 

d. Christmas Eve/New Year’s Eve Operating Hours- Chief Operating Officer Paul Lewicki reported that the 

ridership on Christmas Eve and New Year’s Eve has been very low after 6 PM and recommended that the 

Board approve ending route service at 6:00 PM on each of these days.  

Commissioner MacDonald moved to close route service at 6 PM on Christmas Eve and New 

Year’s Eve. 

Commissioner Gearin seconded the motion 

Discussion- Commissioner Kidder said that there needs to be a lot of public notification done in 

advance. Chair Kleczek added that there needs to be notification up well in advance that is 

specific to each of the routes final start and finish times.   

Motion passed unanimously 

 

e. Seaside Grocery Outlet- The Board discussed submitting a letter to the planning commission expressing 

the District’s concerns on the impact to traffic flow on HWY 101 

 

Commissioner Gearin moved to approve writing a letter to the Seaside Planning Commission that 

states that the SETD Board is concerned about the impact that the construction permit for the 

Grocery Outlet and any other business in that area will have without the provision for funding 

construction of a left hand turn lane or other traffic control provisions in a timely manner at the 

intersection of avenue O and Hwy101 and to give the Board Chair permission to sign the letter, 

include the site study in the letter and give staff permission to testify on the Boards behalf at the 

next Planning Commission Meeting in Seaside. 

Commissioner Widener seconded 

Discussion-None 

Motion passed unanimously  

 

10. CORRESPONDENCE- None 

 

11. EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR REPORT-Executive Director Hazen gave a report on REMIX software.  He discussed 

the 5310 funds and Mobility Management Department and the Ecolane software.  Hazen reported that a meeting 

has been set up with ODOT staff to discuss Matt’s T.O. role.  He and Matt will be at that meeting.  Ridership is 

up 11%.  Due to the non response from Mozy, he asked for Board for approval to contact an attorney that was 

recommended by SDIS. The Board gave consensus to contact an attorney. Chair Kleczek requested that plans for 

the Board Retreat begin as soon as possible.  

12. Management Team Reports submitted by Transit Center-John Layton, Ride Assist- Jennifer Geisler, Marketing 

and Outreach- Mary Parker, RideCare- Jason Jones, Human Resources-Tami Carlson and Transportation Options- 

Matthew Weintraub. 

13. PUBLIC COMMENT- None                                                    

14. OTHER ITEMS-  

   

 

Meeting was adjourned at 12:30 PM   Mary Parker, Recording Secretary 

 

 

________________________________________________       Date_____________________ 

Secretary Treasurer Lylla Gaebel 

 

An audio recording of the Sunset Empire Transportation District’s Board Meeting is available at:  

www.ridethebus.org-Board of Commissioners- Monthly Meeting Minutes- November 2018. 

 

 

 

 
Mission Statement 

Provide safe, reliable, relevant and sustainable transportation services to  

Clatsop County with professionalism, integrity and courtesy. 

  5

http://www.ridethebus.org/


Date: December 12, 2018 

To: Board of Commissioners 

From: Jeff Hazen 

Re: Agenda Item 6.a Report on Personnel Costs 

 

Tracy, Paul and I have been taking a deep dive into our personnel costs, comparing this year to 

last year.  The budget that I wrote was not enough to match the impacts that were made on the 

general fund.   

 

The biggest impacts during the time period of July through October are as follows: 

 

The raise I received in November of 2017 had an impact of $5,947 

The newly created position of Payroll/Accounting Clerk had an impact of $12,456 

The transition of the RideCare Mgr. to Mobility Management had an impact of $21,607 

The rehire of a fixed route driver had an impact of $16,381 

The addition of a Maintenance Supervisor had an impact of $17,000 

The Hiring of a new T.O. Coordinator had an impact of $5,980 

The increase in paratransit service had an impact of $16,772. 

 

These total $96,143.  The next page shows the comparisons for all categories in hours, dollars, 

and average wage. 

 

 

 

 

 

  6



Hours Amount Ave. Wage Hours Amount Ave. Wage Change Hrs Change $ Change Ave.

Bereavement 32.00 $833.12 $26.04 40.00 $608.32 $15.21 (8.00) $224.80 $10.83

CSR 1897.40 $30,753.27 $16.21 1881.10 $28,827.55 $15.32 16.30 $1,925.72 $0.88

Driver Supervisors 1357.05 $29,027.35 $21.39 1402.75 $26,488.87 $18.88 (45.70) $2,538.48 $2.51

Fixed Route Driver 7562.05 $123,110.24 $16.28 6687.55 $106,508.09 $15.93 874.50 $16,602.15 $0.35

Holiday 524.00 $10,369.64 $19.79 432.00 $7,789.52 $18.03 92.00 $2,580.12 $1.76

Holiday Worked 307.90 $8,251.26 $26.80 0.00 $0.00 #DIV/0! 307.90 $8,251.26 #DIV/0!

Lot Attendant 9.50 $106.88 $11.25 520.10 $5,437.12 $10.45 (510.60) ($5,330.24) $0.80

Maintenance Sup 606.25 $14,395.32 $23.74 0.00 $0.00 #DIV/0! 606.25 $14,395.32 #DIV/0!

Mechanic Asst. 321.50 $4,326.81 $13.46 356.00 $4,628.00 $13.00 (34.50) ($301.19) $0.46

Mechanic  672.60 $13,787.83 $20.50 652.60 $12,701.38 $19.46 20.00 $1,086.45 $1.04

OPS Assistant 541.85 $9,843.98 $18.17 573.30 $9,713.31 $16.94 (31.45) $130.67 $1.22

Overtime 1257.45 $33,644.01 $26.76 1639.50 $41,417.84 $25.26 (382.05) ($7,773.83) $1.49

Paratransit Driver 3223.95 $53,369.47 $16.55 2263.70 $36,597.42 $16.17 960.25 $16,772.05 $0.39

Paratransit Sup 594.85 $12,516.83 $21.04 684.80 $11,837.17 $17.29 (89.95) $679.66 $3.76

Personal Day 64.00 $1,300.24 $20.32 8.00 $147.68 $18.46 56.00 $1,152.56 $1.86

Retroactive Pay 0.00 $1,089.21 #DIV/0! 0.00 $0.00 #DIV/0! 0.00 $1,089.21 #DIV/0!

Payroll/Acct. Clerk 248.25 $4,461.05 $17.97 0.00 $0.00 #DIV/0! 248.25 $4,461.05 #DIV/0!

Salary 3829.50 $113,706.78 $29.69 3756.96 $99,753.05 $26.55 72.54 $13,953.73 $3.14

TO 704.00 $13,800.32 $19.60 339.50 $6,280.75 $18.50 364.50 $7,519.57 $1.10

Sick 761.80 $14,197.59 $18.64 475.00 $8,497.29 $17.89 286.80 $5,700.30 $0.75

Vac 1451.75 $28,617.40 $19.71 993.13 $18,708.72 $18.84 458.62 $9,908.68 $0.87

Total 25967.65 $521,508.60 $20.08 22705.99 $425,942.08 $18.76 3261.66 $95,566.52 $1.32

July-Oct 2018 July-Oct 2017

Pay Type

  7



 

Date: December 12, 2018  

 

To: Board of Commissioners  

 

From: Paul Lewicki  

 

Re: Lower Columbia Connector (LCC) Route Weekend Service to Portland  

 

Currently, SETD meets Columbia County’s CC Rider at Rainier twice a day, seven days a week, 

for passengers traveling between Astoria and Longview/Kelso or Portland. CC Rider has 

determined that it is no longer able to provide weekend service on its connector route to Portland 

as a result of its current fiscal condition. Due to the popularity of this service and a reluctance to 

allow service to our riders to be interrupted, staff is exploring a few options to provide modified 

service until a new intercity grant can be awarded and full service can be restored for this route.  

 

CC Rider has shared the first draft of its proposed service changes.  As it stands, it appears that 

we can continue to meet CC Rider’s buses at Rainier with only minor adjustments to our 

schedule.  However, since they are cutting weekend service, we cannot connect on the weekend 

but would strive to provide some continued connectivity to those who need it.   Staff has 

provided some options to provide varying levels of service.  A cost matrix is attached.  These 

options provide service ranging from a route which runs only to Clatskanie twice a day, seven 

days a week, to a route which runs to Portland twice a day, seven days a week.  A cost matrix is 

attached.   

 

Staff favors the option (4) which continues to meet CC Rider at Rainier twice a day, Monday 

through Friday, and extends our service between Rainier and Longview/Kelso, to the Amtrak 

station on Saturday and Sunday. 

 

Jeff has met with ODOT staff to seek financial assistance with the operation of this route during 

the remainder of this biennium.  We are submitting backup documentation to them this week.  At 

this time, we don’t know the extent of assistance they can provide. 

 

Staff recommends that the Board approve Option 4 so we can continue to offer service to 

Longview/Kelso on the weekends.   

  8



 

Option Comments Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday Sunday

Hours/

Week

Day

Hours/

Weekend

Hours 

Per

Week

Cost/

Week

Cost/

Quarter

Cost/

Year

1 Current Schedule 2 Loops (B) 2 Loops (B) 2 Loops (B) 2 Loops (B) 2 Loops (B) 2 Loops (B) 2 Loops (B) 25 10 35 $4,200 $54,600 $218,400

2
Rainier weekdays, 

Portland weekends, 

twice per day

2 Loops (B) 2 Loops (B) 2 Loops (B) 2 Loops (B) 2 Loops (B) 2 Loops (D) 2 Loops (D) 25 20 45 $5,400 $70,200 $280,800

3
Rainier/Kelso twice/day, 

everyday
2 Loops (B&C) 2 Loops (B&C) 2 Loops (B&C) 2 Loops (B&C) 2 Loops (B&C) 2 Loops (B&C) 2 Loops (B&C) 37 14.8 51.8 $6,216 $80,808 $323,232

4

Rainier weekdays, 

Rainier/Kelso 

weekends, twice/day

2 Loops (B) 2 Loops (B) 2 Loops (B) 2 Loops (B) 2 Loops (B) 2 Loops (B&C) 2 Loops (B&C) 25 14.8 39.8 $4,776 $62,088 $248,352

5
Clatskanie only, twice a 

day.
2 Loops (A) 2 Loops (A) 2 Loops (A) 2 Loops (A) 2 Loops (A) 2 Loops (A) 2 Loops (A) 27 10.8 37.8 $4,536 $58,968 $235,872

6
Portland, twice a day, 

everyday
2 Loops (D) 2 Loops (D) 2 Loops (D) 2 Loops (D) 2 Loops (D) 2 Loops (D) 2 Loops (D) 50 20 70 $8,400 $109,200 $436,800

( ) See trips below

Trips From To  Hours/Loop cost/hour cost/loop

A Astoria Clatskanie 1.80 $120.00 $216.00

B Astoria Rainier 2.50 $120.00 $300.00

C Rainier Longview/Kelso 1.20 $120.00 $144.00

D Astoria Portland 5.00 $120.00 $600.00

Operations 12/12/18

OPTIONS TO OUR EXISTING LOWER COLUMBIA CONNECTOR ROUTE

COST PER LOOP/SEGMENT

  9



Date: December 11, 2018 

To: Board of Commissioners 

From: Jeff 

Re: Agenda Item 6.c Seaside Kiosk Update 

 

In our conversations on the future of the kiosk in Seaside, we discussed approaching the City of 

Seaside’s Visitor Center to talk about the potential of us sharing the space with them.  They had 

a lengthy discussion in their last Tourism Committee meeting and it was determined that it 

would not be a good fit for them.  Currently, there is no point of sale for anything and they want 

to keep it strictly and information center. 

 

Approaching Sunset Empire Parks and Recreation District (SEPRD) was another idea suggested.  

I met with Skylar Archibald and discussed the possibility of having them sell passes for us.  They 

don’t have room in their lobby area for us to have an employee work there.  He was very 

receptive to the idea, joking that they get a lot of calls for us there!  He needs to get approval 

from the Board, so I will be at their next Board meeting, December 18th in the evening. 

 

Mary had also suggested a vacancy on the corner of Holladay and Oceanway, a location not on 

one of our routes but is less than ½ mile from the bus stop at McDonalds.  It was fortuitous that 

the owner of the building happened to be in town, so I was able to meet him and take a look at 

the space.  Much like the previous spot we looked at next to the health food store, it is larger than 

what we need.  This space has a front area with four separate office spaces located behind it.  

There is a bathroom located in the back of the space, behind the offices.  I have included the 

proposals that the owner has sent us for your consideration.  I have also included a spreadsheet, 

so you can see the numbers generated by the kiosk.   

 

One of the concerns you may have is if we move forward with the SEPRD option, is what 

happens to staff.  Marcela Foeste is retiring, and we would move Eric Barton back to the Transit 

Center fulltime where he previously worked prior to the kiosk opening. 

 

The supplemental budget that is on the agenda today does not include funding for the other 

option mentioned above.  It was one of the line items in Materials & Services that was reduced.  

If the Board desires to pursue this option, we will have to discuss this in the public hearing and 

adjust the supplemental budget presented by staff.    

 

Staff is recommending the that the Board approve moving forward with partnering with SEPRD 

to sell our passes pending approval by their Board. 

 

 

  

 

  10



  11



  12



  13



Date: December 11, 2018 

To:  Board of Commissioners 

From: John Layton 

Re:  Agenda Item 6.d IT Services 

Our contract with mindShift will be ending on February 5th, 2019.  We will need an IT Vendor to 

help me with monitoring our computer network. 

Since my job duties include more than just IT, I need to be able to work and trust someone else 

to watch over our system. I did some research for a new vendor and the vendor I will be 

suggesting is iFocus Consulting out of Astoria.  We have worked with them before and I had a 

good working relationship with them when I previously oversaw our IT.   Plus, they are a local 

company that can quickly dispatch help to our site. 

The agreement with iFocus, that you are to consider, will cover the following services: 

• Windows Server Support – they will provide support for our servers.  Basically, if we 

need to do something with the server, such as adding a new user, they will help.  If 

something breaks in our servers, they will help us to fix it or help us get support from the 

server vendor. 

• Network Infrastructure Support – In short, they will make sure that our servers and 

computers will talk to each other. 

• Backup Services / Disaster Recovery / DNS Filtering / Antivirus – iFocus will make sure 

our backups are working and if our system goes down again, they will help us get back 

up.  They will also provide antivirus software for all our computers and make sure it is up 

to date. 

• Computer Auditing Services – Will take inventory of our computer system and provide 

suggestions for our network. 

We will be billed $2,150.00 a month for their help.  We also will get their discounted billing rate, 

$110.00 an hour, if we needed help outside of the contract – such as providing support for our 

desktop computers.  If an event happens outside iFocus’s normal business hours – Monday 

through Friday 8:00 am to 5:00 pm, we would be billed $187.50 an hour.   

In order to continue network support of our system, staff is recommending that the Board 

authorize the Board Chair to sign the iFocus Contract. 

 

 

  14



Date: December 11, 2018 

To: Board of Commissioners 

From: Jeff 

Re: Agenda Item 6.e SDAO Conference 

 

At the Board’s October meeting, Commissioners’ Widener and Alegria, Vice Chair Kidder, and 

Chair Kleczek indicated that they would like to attend the SDAO Conference at Sunriver in 

February.  As part of the supplemental budget, we have reduced the Conference, Training, and 

Travel line.  Staff will not be going to the SDAO conference or other conferences for the rest of 

FY 2019.  Registration fee for the conference is $330 assuming going to one of the pre-sessions.  

The hotel at Sunriver appears to be full but there are other accommodations located about a mile 

away.  Four nights lodging would be approximately $650.00 per person bringing the total to 

$980 per person to attend.  This does not include transportation costs. 

 

Staff is recommending that if the Board still wants to attend the conference that it be limited to 

two members of the Board.  If the Board decides to have all four go, the Board will need to make 

adjustments to the supplemental budget during the public hearing. 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

  15



Date: December 11, 2018 

To: Board of Commissioners 

From: Jeff 

Re: Agenda Item 6.f Board Retreat Update 

 

On November 30th, I sent this email to George Dunkel with SDAO: 

 

Hello George, hope all is well! 

 

The Board would like to get a Strategic Planning session set up for after the first of the year.  

They were very pleased with the session that was led by John and Bill two years ago and they 

would like to use SDAO Consulting Services again.  The other thing that they would like is a 

team building session for the Board.  Is this something that SDAO offers? 

 

He replied on December 5th with this: 

 

Jeff, 

Expect a call from Bill. 

 

George 

 

I haven’t heard from Bill yet but if I do before the meeting, I will update the Board. 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

  16



Date: December 11, 2018 

To: Board of Commissioners 

From: Jeff 

Re: Agenda Item 7.a Supplemental Budget – RideCare 

 

It is necessary to have a supplemental budget for the RideCare fund because we received higher 

than budgeted amount of interest and provider services reimbursements.  We also had higher 

than anticipated personnel costs largely due to paying out of sick leave to those employees who 

stayed with us until the last day of operation.  Material & Services as a total are under budget but 

we adjusted some of the line items to reflect actual costs incurred.  We ended up with a net gain 

in that fund, so it was applied to the ending fund balance. All changes are highlighted in yellow*. 

 

Staff is recommending that the Board approve Resolution #2015-05, adopting the supplemental 

budget. 

 

*On the last page, there is not an extra column due to the spreadsheet from the State being 

corrupt.  It would not allow me to add an extra column.  The column that is titled Approved By 

Budget Committee on that page is also what was adopted by the Board. 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

  17



  18



  19



  20



 

 
 

Board of Commissioners 

RESOLUTION 2018-05 

 
The Board of Commissioners of the Sunset Empire Transportation District, Astoria Oregon, resolves to 

authorize adjustments to the 2018-2019 RideCare annual budget. The required adjustments are due to higher 

than anticipated revenues and higher than expected personnel costs.     
 

Be it resolved that pursuant to the desire of the Board of Commissioners of the Sunset Empire Transportation 

District, the submitted RideCare Supplemental Budget has been adopted and all public notifications made.  

MOTION OF ADOPTION  

 

 

 

 

 

 

PASSED BY A MAJORITY OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS WITH A QUORUM IN ATTENDANCE THIS 18th DAY OF 

DECEMBER, 2018.  

SUNSET EMPIRE TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT, CLATSOP COUNTY, OREGON 

By______________________________________________ 

Title: Kathy Kleczek, Board Chair 

ATTEST: 

By:_______________________________________________ 

Title: Lylla Gaebel, Secretary/Treasurer 

Name Aye Nay Absent 
Chair Kleczek    
Commissioner Alegria    
Commissioner MacDonald    
Commissioner Widener    
Commissioner  Kidder    
Commissioner Gaebel    
Commissioner Gearin    

  21



Date: December 12, 2018 

To: Board of Commissioners 

From: Jeff Hazen 

Re: Agenda Item 8. Public Hearing Supplemental Budget 

 

This is the time set for a public hearing on a supplemental budget for the General Fund and for 

the Capital Reserve Fund.  Adjustments to the budget are necessary due to increased personnel 

costs and increased material and services costs.  You can see each line that we adjusted on the 

attached spreadsheets, they are highlighted in yellow. 

 

In resources, the available cash on hand line was increased by $167,323 for cash that RideCare 

still owes the General Fund from the due to/due from financial category.  The transferred in line 

was reduced by $83,127 since we will not be receiving the 4 new buses this fiscal year.  Based 

on YTD numbers, we have reduced the State Mass Transit Payroll Distribution by $5,000.  We 

have reduced the IGA Contracted Service by $100,000 because of the Lower Columbia 

Connector.  We have reduced the two grants for new buses by $174,250 and $457,623.  Both 

those lines go to zero.  We added in the $24,000 competitive grant we received for preventative 

maintenance. 

 

In personnel, we have increased wages by $312,000 and Payroll taxes/Workers Comp by 

$18,000.  We have decreased the benefits line by $20,000.  This gives the Personnel Services 

category a $310,000 increase.   

 

In materials and services, we increased and decreased several lines due to known information 

and trends.  Of note, Computer Information Technology Services includes increases for the data 

recovery we had and adjusted for the reduced monthly costs we will be having when mindSHIFT 

is no longer our vendor.  We added $70,000 to Legal Counsel because we have spent $28,000 on 

our labor attorneys and felt that $50,000 may not be enough.  With other adjustments on other 

lines it gives Materials and Services an increase of $23,450. 

 

The Capital Outlay keeps the purchase of new accounting software in it.  The transfer to Capital 

Reserve was reduced by $83,127 since we aren’t getting the new buses this year.  The Operating 

Contingency was reduced by $160,000 to make it zero. 

 

These changes are also reflected in the Capital Reserve Fund. 

 

Staff is recommending that you hold the public hearing as required and then approve Resolution 

#18-04. 

 

 

 

  22



  23



  24



  25



  26



  27



 

 
 

Board of Commissioners 

RESOLUTION 2018-04 

 
The Board of Commissioners of the Sunset Empire Transportation District, Astoria Oregon, resolves to 

authorize adjustments to the 2018-2019 SETD General Fund and Capital Reserve Fund annual budget. The 

required adjustments are due to higher than anticipated personnel costs, adjusted Material and Services for 

server failure and recovery and unanticipated attorney costs will decrease the General Fund Budget Revenues 

by $624,677, increase Materials and Services by $23,450, increase Personnel Services by $310,000, decrease 

Capital Outlay by $715,000 and decrease Contingency by $160,000.  
 

Be it resolved that pursuant to the desire of the Board of Commissioners of the Sunset Empire Transportation 

District the submitted General Fund Supplemental Budget has been adopted and all public notifications made.  

MOTION OF ADOPTION  

 

 

 

 

 

 

PASSED BY A MAJORITY OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS WITH A QUORUM IN ATTENDANCE THIS 18th DAY OF 

DECEMBER 2018.  

SUNSET EMPIRE TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT, CLATSOP COUNTY, OREGON 

By______________________________________________ 

Title: Kathy Kleczek, Board Chair 

ATTEST: 

By:_______________________________________________ 

Title: Lylla Gaebel, Secretary/Treasurer 

Name Aye Nay Absent 
Chair Kleczek    
Commissioner Alegria    
Commissioner MacDonald    
Commissioner Widener    
Commissioner  Kidder    
Commissioner Gaebel    
Commissioner Gearin    

  28


	1. DECEMBER 2018 Board Agenda
	5. November 2018 Minutes Draft
	6.a.1 Personnel Costs cover
	6.a.2 Payroll comparison
	6.b.1 Cover - LCC - Dec 18
	6.b.2 Matrix - LCC - Dec 18
	6.c.1 Seaside Kiosk
	6.c.2 Photo
	6.c.3 Proposal
	6.d IT Services
	6.e SDAO Conference
	6.f Board Retreat
	7.a.1 Supplemental Cover
	7.a.2 Supplemental RideCare
	7.a.3 Resolution 2018.05 RideCare Supplemental Budget -fINAL
	8.a.1 Supplemental Cover
	8.a.2 Supplemental General Fund-Resources-JH
	8.a.3 Supplemental Capital Reserve
	8.a.4 Resolution 2018.04 GENERAL fUND Supplemental Budget



